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Dear Madam/Sir,  
 
In regards to the above mentioned open Tender Procedure please find below the Answers of 
Cedefop to the requested Clarifications (and respective Questions), which were raised by one 
potential tenderer. 
 

Clarification 1:  
With regards to the specific task 4.3.2.1.(1)(a) “Organise and perform usability tests with 100 
real users. Cedefop will facilitate the cooperation with the NECs, where required”, please 
clarify the following: 
a) whether there are any methodologies or technologies (e.g. journalistic sessions, eye 

tracking, video recording, etc.) preferable to Cedefop and need to be taken into account; 
b) whether the tests should be carried out on a usability lab with the necessary equipment in 

the Contractor’s premises or in use of a mobile lab in Cedefop and/or NECs premises; 
c) whether the tests should include all linguistic versions of CP/LP editor and Europass 

website’s content;  
d) whether the tests should be carried out in the native language of each user. 
 
Cedefop Answers to Clarification 1 
a) No particular methodology or technology is recommended by Cedefop. “Real users” is to 
be understood as a representative sample (age, gender, education and experience) of citizens 
who complete their CV/ELP using the online tool or off-line using the templates. NECs and/or 
other experts (e.g. employment services) should be involved. Cedefop will coordinate the 
contacts with NECs. 

b) It is up to the tenderers to propose a methodology / technology. The tenderers are not 
required to carry out usability tests at Cedefop’s and/or NECs premises or to use a mobile lab. 

c) It is not required the tests to cover all the linguistic versions of the CV/ELP editor but 
the panel of users should reflect the whole range of potential types of users. 

d) When carrying out the usability tests, the tenderers should take into consideration that 
users may complete the CV/ELP in their native language and in another language. The 
usability tests should address problems encountered by users in both situations. 

 1 



 

Clarification 2:

Clarification 3:

Clarification 4:

Clarification 5:

  
With regards to the specific task 4.3.2.1.(2)(b) “Produce a new suggested full sitemap / content 
organisation (all levels) and full wireframes (navigation and individual pages should be in 
different layers – preferably in Microsoft Visio format) subject to two revisions from Cedefop. 
All suggested changes and the overall reorganisation concept should be accompanied by a 
rationale and full documentation”, please confirm that the Contractor will prepare only the 
English version of the aforementioned deliverables and Cedefop will deliver their translations 
to the Contractor in order to be used in the development phase. 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 2 
Cedefop confirms that the deliverables need be provided in English language only. 
 
 

  
With regards to the specific task 4.3.2.2.(2) “Build a Web2.0, state-of-the-art, user-friendly, 
intuitive, rich-internet application (RIA) for creating, editing and managing the Europass 
documents, mainly CV/LP, and any attachments (Europass e-portfolio)”, could you please 
clarify whether there is a preference for a specific technology such as JavaFX, Adobe 
Flash/Flex/AIR, etc? 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 3 
No specific technology preference exists, but the requirements should be covered and a broad 
target audience should be reached.  
 
 

  
With regards to the specific task 4.3.2.2.(4) “The system should be WAI compatible – If this is 
not possible: produce a WAI compatible version of it. Full keyboard shortcuts should be 
available for performing actions”, could you please clarify the required WAI Conformance 
Level? 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 4 
The required WAI Conformance Level is: Level A of the W3C. 
 
 

  
With regards to the specific task 4.3.2.2.(14) “Linguistic assistance: Synonyms available on 
right click of any word. Spell checking functionality should be available for all languages of 
the CV/ELP online tool, for the fields where the users enter free text”, could you please 
confirm that the dictionary needed will be provided by Cedefop? 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 5 
No such dictionary will be provided by Cedefop. The tenderers should provide what they 
consider best so as to cover the requirement. 
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Clarification 6:

Clarification 7:

  
In the list of activities provided under point “4.2. General description of services to be 
provided” and in the list of the profiles under point “4.6. Profiles”, graphical design activities 
and graphic designer profile are both absent. In this context, could you please confirm that: 
a) such activities and profile are out of the scope of the present contract; and 
b) the necessary graphical layouts will be delivered to the Contractor by Cedefop? 
 
Cedefop Answers to Clarification 6 
a) Cedefop confirms that the graphical design activities and the graphic designer profile 
are out of scope of the present contract. Nevertheless, given the high visibility of the project 
and the broad target audience, special attention should be paid to aspects such as attractiveness, 
user-friendliness and intuitiveness, especially for the online CV/ELP tool. Par 4.3.2.3 states 
that “More modern, simplified and attractive interface enabling quick access to the 
information. This means that up-to-date technologies should be used, and appropriate effort 
should be allocated for the design of the user interface.” 

b) We confirm that graphical elements such as logos, fonts, etc. and graphical layouts will 
be provided to the Contractor by Cedefop. 

 
 

  
Section 7.2.1 states that Tenderer should provide “a detailed justification of the proposed 
architecture and the choice of technologies (hardware, operating system, web application 
server, …”. However the description of task 4.3.2 of page 11 is oriented to UI aspects of the 
CV / LP editor and Europass website and not to their redevelopment. Could you please 
elaborate on this? More specifically could you please confirm that the redevelopment of the 
CV/LP editor and Europass website is out of the scope of task 4.3.2; therefore, a description of 
the hardware, architecture, etc. is not required for document 1a. 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 7 

Point 4.3.2 includes a requirement to “Analyse, design and develop an improved version of the 
Europass portal, i.e. (i) the Europass CV-online web application and (ii) the main Europass 
website”. Therefore a partial or full redevelopment is not excluded. 
 
 

Clarification 8:  
What are the expected start and end date for task 4.3.2? 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 8 
The development of Europass web resources started in 2004. Successive development phases 
were carried out. The implementation of the next phases will depend on the priorities set by the 
European Commission together with Cedefop and the National Europass Centres, and also on 
the resources available. 
As mentioned in the text, the task 4.3.2 is expected to be concluded within the 1st year. The 
time-schedule and work-plan are part of the award criteria, and shall be evaluated accordingly. 
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Clarification 9:

Clarification 10: 

Clarification 11: 

  
7.1 - Criteria for the technical evaluation, award criterion 1a 
Question: 
a) The Tenderes shall present their approach for the study, analysis, design AND the 
implementation of the Revamp of the Europass web site and the online CV/ELP tool. 
However, the Tenderer shall submit a financial offer (Annex K) for the study, analysis, design 
and NOT the implementation of the revamp of the Europass web site and the online CV/LP 
editor. Please confirm that this is correct. 
b) Could you please specify where in our offer the effort analysis of exactly what is 
requested in the Financial Offer Annex K (excluding the implementation effort) shall be 
presented?  
 
Cedefop Answers to the Questions under Clarification 9  
a) Item “1” of Annex K reads “Study, analysis, and design (not implementation) of the 
revamp of the Europass web site and the online CV/LP editor, as described in section 4.3.2 of 
the text”. The financial offer shall not cover the implementation of the revamp of the Europass 
website. 

b) The effort analysis of item “1” of Annex K could be indicated at the documentation of 
award criterion 1a, as defined at 7.2.1(2). 

 
 

 
Annex G, 3 Project Reference Form 
Question: 
a) With regard the field “Number, type and names of staff involved”, we understand that 
the Tenderers shall present the project team and their roles in the project. Please confirm that 
our understanding is correct.  
b) In case the project concerns a Framework Contract, shall the Tenderer present all the 
staff involved in the Framework Contract? 
 
Cedefop Answers to the Questions under Clarification 10  
a) Cedefop confirms that “Number, type and names of staff involved” refers to the project 
team - number of staff to be involved, their names, their profile and the specific roles for the 
implementation of the project/contract. 

b) Cedefop confirms that all staff involved in the framework contract should be presented.  

 
 

 
With regards to the specific task 4.6.3 “liaising with the Senior engineer where appropriate 
and for more demanding issues ”, please confirm that the “Senior engineer” will be 
Contractor’s technical personnel offering a remote (off-site) second level support.  Do we also 
need to liaise with the “on-site technical consultant”? 
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Cedefop Answer to Clarification 11 
The title “Senior Engineer” refers to the profile “4.6.2. Task Profile: Senior analyst, engineer 
and consultant” (off-site). Liaising with the “4.6.7 Onsite technical manager” as well as with 
all the rest of the team may also be sometimes necessary. 
 
 

Clarification 12:  
a) According to our understanding the additional material provided along with the third 
set of clarifications are considered as quite significant in order the tenderer to prepare a 
competitive offer in line with CEDEFOP’s expectations. Since these material provided six 
working days before the submission deadline we would highly appreciate it if you consider an 
extension of the submission deadline of at least one week in order the tenderer to have a clear 
view of the technical information provided. 
b) With regards to the specific task 4.3.3 (5) “A migration procedure should be designed 
and a customisable tool should be developed which should assist the migration process 
(2010).”, could you please provide further details on the envisaged functionality of the desired 
migration tool? 
 
Cedefop Answers to Clarification 12 
a) Cedefop confirms that the deadline for submission of tenders has been extended. The 
new deadline is 05/10/2009 (17h00 local time for hand-delivered tenders). 
b) Migration tool is intended to enable a smooth migration of data from the existing 
national EM systems to Cedefop’s Europass Mobility management tool.  
 
 

Clarification 13:  
Annex H page 3 “ Cedefop has developed a distributed Internet based tool for the management 
of the Europass Mobility by National Europass Centres and partner organisations ” 
Please, let us know 
a) why did you implemented a distributed Internet based tool for the management of the 

Europass Mobility by National Europass Centres and partner organizations instead of a 
centralized one and  

b) what are the current procedures for the distribution and installation of the required 
software (NEC Application) to NECs – does it require a senior system administrator and  

c) what problems and issues you have uncounted so far with the distribution of the NEC 
Application.  

 
Cedefop Answers to Clarification 13 
a) The choice of a distributed tool is due to: 

- the expected large target audience and the consequent scaling issues, 
- the of issues related with the ownership of data, including the personal data of citizens, 

stored in the system.  
b) Distribution of the EM Tool software packages, along with instructions are sent to the 
technical person of each NEC. There is no need the technical person of the NEC to be senior 
system administrator. The installation and configuration takes normally about 30 minutes. 
c) The main issues with the deployment at NECs are network/firewall related, pertaining to 
the infrastructure of the NEC. 
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Clarification 14: 

Clarification 15: 

Clarification 16: 

Clarification 17: 

 
Terms of Reference – Paragraph 4.2.4 “Choice of servers topology and architecture” Please 
clarify whether you are referring to the development and testing environment or to the 
production environment. Furthermore we need details on the current servers topology and 
architecture.  
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 14 
The text is referring to both the development/testing as well as to the production environment. 
Details on the current technical architecture exist in Annex H. The provision of further details 
on server topology etc. is not considered necessary for the preparation of the tender. In any 
case, there is a related documentation in the Annex of clarification (3). 
 
 

 
Please clarify whether we have to provide in our tender the hardware and software architecture 
infrastructure of the development testing and production environment.  
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 15 
Please refer to Par 7.2.1(1), where it is specified the following: “A detailed justification of the 
proposed architecture and the choice of technologies (hardware, operating system, web 
application server, web server, programming languages, development frameworks, libraries, 
including the list of any software tools and licenses needed);”. 
 
 

 
Please clarify whether the testing environment will be hosted by Cedefop or by the Contractor. 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 16 
This has been left up to the tenderer to decide and propose it in the offer. 
 
 

 
Please clarify whether there is currently a web content management system for the creation and 
management of the static content displayed on the site. If not, is this a mandatory requirements 
for the revamp of the site 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 17 
Currently there is a custom CMS designed specifically for the creation and management of the 
content, displayed on the site. No requirement about CMS is mentioned in the text of the tender 
documents. Nevertheless, the new site is also expected to be fitted with content management 
capabilities. 
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Clarification 18:  
To our understanding the maximum number of pages for document 1e does not include the 
cover pages meaning the Table of Content, Abbreviations, Acronyms, Table of Figures, etc. 
Please confirm that our understanding is correct. 
 
Cedefop Answer to Clarification 18 
The text of the comprehensive description (par 7.2.5. of the Specifications) should not exceed 
three pages. Extra information (e.g. Table of Content, Abbreviations, Acronyms, Table of 
Figures) will not be taken into consideration in counting the pages but their volume should 
remain reasonable. The tenderers should ensure that the three page description is clear and 
legible, and does not refer to extra (additional) information. 
 


